
 
 

 

"The superior man seeks what is right; the inferior one, what is profitable." 

— Confucius 
 

City of Covington 
16720 SE 271st Street, Suite 100 • Covington, WA 98042 • (253) 638-1110 • Fax: (253) 638-1122 

 

The City of Covington is a place where community, business, and civic leaders work together with citizens  
to preserve and foster a strong sense of community. 

       

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
May 5, 2011 6:30 pm 

 

CALL TO ORDER 
 

ROLL CALL 
Chair Sean Smith, Vice Chair Daniel Key, Jack Brooks, Sonia Foss, Bill Judd, Richard Pfeiffer, and  
Alex White.  
 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
1.  Planning Commission Minutes for February 17, 2011 and March 17, 2011. 

 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

2. Anderson, Baugh & Associates, LLC: 20 minute Presentation on “The Northern Notch” 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS - Note:  The Citizen Comment period is to provide the opportunity for members of the audience to address the 

Commission on items either not on the agenda or not listed as a Public Hearing.  The Chair will open this portion of the meeting and ask for a 
show of hands of those persons wishing to address the Commission.  When recognized, please approach the podium, give your name and city of 
residence, and state the matter of your interest.  If your interest is an Agenda Item, the Chair may suggest that your comments wait until that 
time.  Citizen comments will be limited to four minutes for Citizen Comments and four minutes for Unfinished Business.  If you require more than 
the allotted time, your item will be placed on the next agenda.  If you anticipate, in advance, your comments taking longer than the allotted time, 
you are encouraged to contact the Planning Department ten days in advance of the meeting so that your item may be placed on the next 
available agenda. 
 
 

PUBLIC HEARING  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
 

NEW BUSINESS  
 

ATTENDANCE VOTE 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 
       

COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS OF COMMISSIONERS AND STAFF 
 

ADJOURN 
 

Any person requiring a disability accommodation should contact the City at least 24 hours in advance.   
For TDD relay service please use the state’s toll-free relay service (800) 833-6384 and ask the operator to dial (253) 638-1110 

Web Page:  www.ci.covington.wa.us 



 

 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
Planning Commission Minutes 

 
February 17, 2011     City Hall Council Chambers 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Smith called the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to order at 
6:35.  
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Chair Smith, Vice Chair Key, Jack Brooks, Sonia Foss, and Bill Judd. 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Ed Pfeifer & Alex White 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Richard Hart, Acting Director of Community Development 
Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
Kelly Thompson, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Ø 1.  Commissioner Foss moved and Vice Chair Key seconded to approve 

the consent agenda including the minutes for January 20, 2011.  Motion 
carried 5-0. 

 
CITIZEN COMMENTS – NONE 
 
The record is noted to show that Commissioner White arrived at 6:38 p.m. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING  
 

2. Code Amendments for Banner Signs  
 
Acting Community Develop Director, Richard Hart, explained that the City Council 
had asked that staff and the Planning Commission look at the current banner 
sign regulations. Currently, the banner sign permit applications require intake 
and review. The suggested amendments will allow permits to be issued over-the-
counter. Additionally, the suggested amendments contain a size limitation, 
location requirements, and number of days allowed for display.  
 
 
 



 

 

The City received comments from Washington State Department of 
Transportation relating to signs being placed on SR516/SR18 interchange. 
Approval must be given by WSDOT prior to placement of any signage being 
installed.  
 

3. Decision Authority for Extension of Commercial Site 
Development Applications 

 
Richard Hart explained the decision authority for Commercial Site Development 
Application Extension approvals currently rests with the City Council. This process 
could be more easily handled at a staff level. Existing regulations state that the 
permit approvals are valid for 3 years and the applicant can request two 1-year 
extensions. The suggested amendment allows for a single extension for a period 
of 2 years and approval at the staff level.   
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
   
Ø Vice Chair moved and Commissioner Foss seconded to recommend to the 

City Council to adopt the changes to the Covington Municipal Code 
18.55.050 Code Table 1 for Special Sale/Promotional Events and Grand 
Openings to change the maximum number of signs to two, the maximum 
sign area to 32 square feet, the maximum height to not be located above 
the base of the roofline, and maximum length of display not exceed 120 
days. Motion carried 6-0. 

 
Ø Commissioner Brooks moved and Commissioner White seconded to 

recommend to the City Council to adopt the Change of Decision Authority 
for Extension of Site Development Permit Approvals in Covington 
Municipal Code 18.110.080. Motion carries 6-0. 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

4. Discussion of 2011 Comprehensive Plan Amendment and 
Development Regulation Amendment Docket 

 
Richard Hart reviewed the Comprehensive Plan Amendment Instruction Guide 
and Timeline with the Planning Commission. There are four (4) proposed 
amendments available for public review and to comment on. There have been no 
comments received to date. Any public comments received will be put on our 
website by March 4, 2011. The next step in the process is for the Planning 
Commission to review and discuss the four (4) proposed amendments.  
 



 

 

There is a study session scheduled for April 12, 2011 with the Planning 
Commission and City Council to present the recommended docket. The City 
Council will hold the Public Hearing on April 26, 2011.  
 
ATTENDANCE VOTE 
 
Ø Commissioner Brooks moved and Commissioner Foss seconded to excuse 

Commissioner Pfeifer’s absence. Motion carried 6-0. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
David Lucavish – Citizen and City Councilperson - The City Council appreciates all 
the work the Planning Commission has done over the last year. The Planning 
Commission went through a number of complicated issues and had a lot on their 
plates. The City Council appreciates the Planning Commission’s opinions and 
comments.  
 
COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM STAFF 
 
Richard Hart noted that David Nemens is on leave for an undetermined period of 
time. Once further information is available it will be shared.  
 
Daniel Key congratulated Chair Smith on receiving Commissioner of the Year 
award.  
 
ADJOURN  
 
The February 17, 2011 Planning Commission Meeting adjourned at 7:16 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

 
_____________________________________________ 

    Kelly Thompson, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
 
 



 

 

CITY OF COVINGTON 
Planning Commission Minutes 

 
March 17, 2011     City Hall Council Chambers 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Smith called the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to order at 
6:33.  
 
MEMBERS PRESENT 
Vice Chair Key, Jack Brooks, Sonia Foss, and Ed Pfeifer. 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT 
Chair Smith, Bill Judd & Alex White 
 
STAFF PRESENT 
Richard Hart, Community Development Director 
Salina Lyons, Senior Planner 
Scott Thomas, Parks & Recreation Director 
Kelly Thompson, Planning Commission Secretary 
 
APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Ø 1.  Commissioner Pfeifer moved and Commissioner Foss seconded to 

approve the consent agenda.  Motion carried 4-0. 
 
CITIZEN COMMENTS  
 
Barry Anderson with Branbar, LLC, asked the Planning Commission to be added 
to the agenda for the next Planning Commission meeting for 20 minutes for a 
presentation on the Northern Notch.  
 
Jim Scott, citizen of Covington, 27030 200th Ave SE – commented that the 
Eastern Gateway to Covington (also known as the Northern Notch) does not 
reflect well on the City. The exit is covered in moss and rocks are everywhere. By 
looking at annexing the Notch, the City could add 70 acres of commercial 
property and be able to protect the stream. Some of the businesses looking at 
downtown Covington want freeway exposure. Annexing the Eastern Gateway 
would offer the City the opportunity for greater economic development: possibly 
a hotel and meeting place.  
 
 
 
 



 

 

PUBLIC HEARING  
 
Community Development Director, Richard Hart briefly reviewed the four items 
for discussion to potentially be placed on the 2011 Comprehensive Plan 
Amendment Docket.  
 
Don Ramsey, Ashton Development, presented a letter for the record with regard 
to CPA-2011-3 and DRA-2011-1 and requested that the Planning Commission 
rescind CPA 2011-3 due to the hardship it will impose to the owner of the Town 
Center property.   
 
Barry Anderson, Branbar LLC, asked the Planning Commission to consider an 
additional amendment moving the urban growth boundary for the Northern 
Notch. In 2007, the Planning Commission voted in support of the Northern 
Notch. The proposal is different and Mr. Anderson would like the opportunity to 
submit their proposal.  
 
Jim Scott, citizen of Covington, urges the Planning Commission to look at the 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment for the Eastern Gateway (as opposed to calling 
this property the Northern Notch). This area is critical to the growth of our city. 
With regard to Comprehensive Plan Amendment CPA-2011-3, the road was 
originally established to promote a pedestrian friendly downtown as part of the 
proposed grid system. The proposed segment of 171st Ave SE was removed 
when there was a potential project, however, that project did not move forward. 
The City Council is now looking to create smaller areas. Mr. Scott is not speaking 
in favor or against this amendment and conveyed that the City Council 
appreciates the work of the Planning Commission.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
Richard Hart referred to Agenda Item 1 and noted that time period for 
application for Comprehensive Plan Amendments has expired with regard to the 
request to consider an additional amendment to move the urban growth 
boundary for the Northern Notch. The Planning Commission has the right to take 
an amendment that has been submitted and modify it, but it appears that Mr. 
Anderson’s request does not relate to any of the four proposed amendments.  
That does not preclude the Planning Commission from discussing or supporting 
Mr. Anderson’s request or from Mr. Anderson coming before the Planning 
Commission and making a presentation.  
 
Ø Commissioner Foss moved and Commissioner Brooks seconded to 

recommend to the City Council the adoption of the 2011 Docket of 
Comprehensive Plan Amendments as presented and discussed. The 
motion carried unanimously, 4-0.  



 

 

 
NEW BUSINESS - None 

 
ATTENDANCE VOTE 
 
The March 3, 2011 Planning Commission meeting was cancelled due to lack of 
quorum.  
 
Ø Commissioner Pfeifer moved and Commissioner Brooks seconded to 

excuse Commissioner Judd, Commissioner White and Chair Smith. Motion 
carried 4-0. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT  
 
Jim Scott, City Councilperson, gave feedback on the joint utilities meeting with 
Covington Water and Soos Creek Water & Sewer and felt it was a great 
presentation.   
 
COMMENTS AND COMMUNICATIONS FROM STAFF 
 
Richard Hart reported that Barry Anderson also requested that the City Council 
allow him 20 minutes on the April 12, 2011 agenda to discuss the Northern 
Notch. Richard suggested that it would be appropriate to wait and see what 
direction the City Council gives staff and the Planning Commission at that time.  
 
Richard also noted three items of interest to the Planning Commission: the 
Banner Sign Amendment, Shoreline Master Program, and the Inter-Local 
Agreement with Black Diamond to share building department resources will be 
presented at the next City Council meeting.  
 
The April 7th Planning Commission is cancelled due to lack of agenda items and 
to allow time to receive direction from the City Council on the Northern Notch.  
 
Commissioner Foss and Commissioner Brooks congratulated Richard Hart on his 
new position as the Director of Community Development. 
 
ADJOURN  
 
The March 17, 2011 Planning Commission Meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 

___________________________________________ 
         Kelly Thompson, Planning Commission Secretary 


























































	05.05.11 Agenda
	02_17_11 Draft Planning Commission Minutes
	ADJOURN
	The February 17, 2011 Planning Commission Meeting adjourned at 7:16 p.m.

	03_17_11 Draft Planning Commission Minutes
	ADJOURN
	The March 17, 2011 Planning Commission Meeting adjourned at 7:15 p.m.

	Anderson Baugh & Assoc1
	Anderson Baugh & Assoc2

